The Companies Act 2006

Private company limited by shares

Written resolutions

of

Portenvale Limited

2) AGGST 2008 (the "Circulation Date")

Pursuant to Chapter 2 of Part 13 of the Companies Act 2006, the members of SSI Holdings Limited (the "Company") propose that

- resolution 1 below is passed as a special resolution (the "Special Resolution"), and
- resolution 2 below is passed as an ordinary resolution (the "Ordinary Resolution")

Special Resolution:

		For	Against
1	Alteration of articles of association	\	
	That the draft regulations produced to the meeting and signed by the chairman of the meeting for the purposes of identification be and they are adopted by the company in substitution for its existing articles of association	X	

Ordinary Resolutions:

		For	Against
2	Appointment of Directors		
	That pursuant to article 20 1 (a) and 20 1 (b) of the articles of association of the Company adopted pursuant to the Special Resolution, Nicholas Kaiser and be and are appointed as a directors of the Company with immediate effect	X	

Important:

18/09/2008 COMPANIES HOUSE 194

Osborne Clarke
Apex Plaza
Forbury Road
Reading RG1 1AX

/5487363_1 DOC

Please read the notes at the end of this document before signifying your agreement to any of the resolutions set out above.

We, the undersigned, being the sole member of the above-named Company entitled to vote on the above resolutions of the Company on the Circulation Date (see Note 4), hereby irrevocably vote as indicated above (see Note 3)

duly authorised signatory for and on behalf of Solarsoft SCE Limited

Number of ordinary shares $2^{\circ c}$ Date 2/2/02

Notes

- 1. If you wish to vote in favour of a resolution please put an "X" in the box marked "For" next to that resolution. If you wish to vote against a resolution please either put an "X" in the box marked "Against" next to that resolution or leave both boxes next to that resolution blank. Unless you wish to vote against/abstain in respect of all of the resolutions (in which case you do not need to do anything in respect of this document), please indicate your voting intentions and then sign and date this document where indicated above and return it to the Company (together with any power of attorney or other authority referred to in Note 5 below) using one of the following methods:
 - By hand, post, Fedex, DHL (or equivalent). delivering the signed copy for the attention of the Directors at Systems House, Foundry Court, Gogmore Lane, Chertsey, Surrey KT16 9AP, United Kingdom, and
 - By e-mail by attaching a scanned copy of the signed document to an e-mail and sending it to <nkaiser@marlinequity.com>, with a copy to <dmcgovern@marlinequity.com> Please enter "Written resolutions dated [X]" in the e-mail subject box.
- A resolution will lapse if sufficient votes in favour of it have not been received by 5 p.m. on 18th September 2008 Unless you do not with to vote on any of the resolutions, please ensure that your agreement reaches the Company on or before this date and time If the Company has not received this document from you by then or if you return this document to the Company without indicating any voting intentions you will be deemed to have voted against all of the resolutions
- Once you have indicated your agreement to a resolution such agreement cannot be revoked
- In the case of joint holders, only the vote of the holder whose name appears first in the register of members of the Company in respect of such joint holding will be counted by the Company to the exclusion of the other joint holder(s)
- If you are signing this document on behalf of a member under a power of attorney or other authority please send a copy of the relevant power of attorney or authority when returning this document

We hereby certify that this is a true and accurate eopy of the original dated this day of control of the original dated this day of control of the original day of control of the original

Articles of Association

of

Portenvale Limited

Company number 04334748

(Private company limited by shares)

as adopted by written special resolution passed on 22nd 2008

Osborne Clarke

/0928458/O5334885/CME

A24

18/09/2008 COMPANIES HOUSE

210

NK

Contents

1	Preliminary
2	Definitions and Interpretation
3	Share capital
4	Shares
5	Share certificates
6	Lien
7	Forfeiture
8	Transfer of shares
9.	Transmission of shares
10	Proceedings at general meetings
11	Proxies
12	Number of directors
13.	Alternate directors
14	Delegation of directors' powers
15	Appointment and retirement of directors
16	Remuneration of directors and director's expenses
17.	Proceedings of directors
18	Company communications
19	Indemnity, Funding and Insurance
20	Rights of Holding Company

Company number: 04334748

The Companies Acts 1985 to 2006

Private company limited by shares

Articles of Association

of

Portenvale Limited

(as adopted by written special resolution passed on 22nd August 2008)

1. Preliminary

The regulations contained in or incorporated in Table A shall apply to the company save insofar as they are excluded or varied by these Articles or are inconsistent with these Articles and such regulations (except as so excluded, varied or inconsistent) together with these Articles shall be the regulations of the company (to the exclusion of any other regulations set out in any statute, statutory instrument or other subordinate legislation from time to time in force)

2 Definitions and Interpretation

Definitions

In these Articles, unless the context otherwise requires, the following words have the following meanings

"1985 Act" means the Companies Act 1985

"2006 Act" means the Companies Act 2006

"Acts" means (subject to Article 2 3) the Companies Acts and, where the context requires, every other statute, order, regulation, or other subordinate legislation from time to time in force in the United Kingdom concerning companies and affecting the company

"address" has the meaning given in Section 1148, Companies Act 2006

"Articles" means these articles of association as altered or varied from time to time (and "Article" means a provision of these Articles).

1

5334885_1 DOC

- "Board" means the board of directors from time to time of the company (or any duly authorised committee of it).
- "Companies Acts" has the meaning given in Section 2, 2006 Act
- "document" means any document (including, but not limited to, any summons, notice, order, register, certificate or other legal process)
- "electronic address" has the meaning given in Section 333(4), 2006 Act
- "electronic form"has the meaning given in Section 1168, 2006 Act
- "electronic means" has the meaning given in Section 1168, 2006 Act
- "hard copy form" and "hard copy" has the meaning given in Section 1168, 2006 Act
- "Holding Company" means Solarsoft SCE Limited registered in England and Wales with company number 3016655
- "Regulation(s)" means the appropriately numbered regulation(s) in Table A.
- "subsidiary" has the meaning set out in section 1159, 2006 Act, provided that a company shall not be regarded as a subsidiary of another company by reason only of the fact that such company is a member of it and controls the composition of its board of directors
- "working day" has the meaning given in Section 1173, 2006 Act
- "writing" means printing, typewriting, lithography, photography and any other mode or modes of representing or reproducing words, symbols or other information in a legible and non-transitory form and "written" shall be construed accordingly
- "Table A" in the Schedule to the Companies (Tables A to F) Regulations 1985 (SI 1985/805) as amended and in force from time to time

Interpretation

- Unless the context otherwise requires (or unless otherwise defined or stated in these Articles), words or expressions defined in Table A shall have the same meaning in these Articles Any other words and expressions contained in these Articles and/or in Table A shall have the same meaning as in the Acts
- In these Articles, a reference to any statute or provision or schedule of a statute shall include any orders, regulations or other subordinate legislation made under it and shall, unless the context otherwise requires, include any modification, re-enactment or restatement of it for the time being in force and the same principle of construction shall be applied to any order, regulations or other subordinate legislation
- 2 4 References in these Articles to a document or information being sent or supplied by or to a company (including the company) shall be construed in accordance with the

provisions of Section 1148(3), 2006 Act and any reference to "sent" or "supplied" (or other similar term) shall be construed in accordance with the provisions of Section 1148(2), 2006 Act

3 Share capital

The authorised share capital of the company at the date of adoption of these Articles is £100 divided into 100 ordinary shares of £1 each

4 Shares

Authority to allot

- The Board is generally and unconditionally authorised for the purposes of Section 80, 1985 Act to exercise any power of the company to allot relevant securities (as defined in that section) to such persons, on such terms and in such manner as it thinks fit, up to an aggregate nominal amount of £100 at any time or times during the period of 5 years from the date on which the resolution of the company adopting these Articles was passed, provided that such authority may be previously revoked or varied by the company in general meeting
- 4.2 The authority contained in Article 4 1 shall enable the Board to allot relevant securities after the expiry of the period set out in Article 4 1 pursuant to an offer or agreement made by the company before the expiry of the said period
- All unissued shares or securities of the company not comprising relevant securities shall be at the disposal of the Board who may allot, issue, grant options or rights over or otherwise dispose of them to such persons, at such times, and on such terms as it thinks fit, provided that no such shares or securities shall be issued at a discount

Exclusion of statutory pre-emption provisions

Pursuant to Section 91, 1985 Act, sub-section (1) of Section 89 and sub-sections (1) to (6) inclusive of Section 90, 1985 Act shall be excluded from applying to the company.

5. Share certificates

The first sentence of Regulation 6 is amended by adding after "Every certificate shall be sealed with the seal" the words "or executed in such other manner as the directors authorise, having regard to the provisions of the Acts"

6 Lien

- The company's lien on a share shall extend to any amount payable in respect of it (which shall include all distributions of money and other assets attributable to it)

 Regulation 8 is modified accordingly
- In addition, Regulation 10 shall be amended by the addition at the end thereof of the words " following such sale, the transferee shall be registered as the holder of those shares to which the transfer relates notwithstanding that he may not be able to produce

5334885_1 DOC

the share certificate and he shall be under no responsibility to see the application of the consideration.

- Regulation 11 shall be amended by replacing the words " .. to the person entitled to the shares at the date of the sale." with the words " .. to the person entitled to the shares immediately before the sale took place"
- The Company shall have no lien on any share that has been charged by way of security to a Secured Institution (as defined in Article 8 3 below) and regulations 8, 9, 10 and 11 of Table A shall not apply in respect of any such share.

7 Forfeiture

The liability of any member in default of payment of a call shall, if the Board so determines, include any costs and expenses suffered or incurred by the company in respect of such non-payment and the powers conferred on the Board by Regulation 18 and the provisions of Regulation 21 are extended accordingly.

8 Transfer of shares

- The Board may, in its absolute discretion, refuse to register a transfer of any share, whether or not it is a fully paid share and whether or not the company has a lien on such share Regulation 24 shall not apply to the company Regulation 26 shall also not apply to the company
- If the Board refuses to register a transfer of a share it shall, within 2 months after the date on which the transfer was lodged with the company, send notice of the refusal to the transferee together with its reasons for the refusal. Any instrument of transfer which the Board refuses to register shall (except in the case of suspected fraud) be returned to the person depositing it. All instruments of transfer which are registered may be retained by the company. Regulations 25 and 28 are modified accordingly.
- Notwithstanding anything contained in these articles, the Board shall not decline to register any transfer of shares, nor may they suspend registration of it where the transfer
 - (a) is to any bank or institution to which such shares have been charged by way of security, or to any nominee of such a bank or institution (a "Secured Institution"); or
 - (b) is delivered to the Company for registration by a Secured Institution or its nominee in order to perfect its security over the shares; or
 - (c) is executed by a Secured Institution or its nominee pursuant to the power of sale or other power under such security,

and furthermore notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in these articles no transferor of any shares in the Company or proposed transferor of such shares to a Secured Institution or its nominee and no Secured Institution or its nominee shall be required to offer the shares which are or are to be the subject of any transfer aforesaid to the shareholders for the time being of the Company or any of them, and no such

shareholder shall have any right under the articles or otherwise howsoever to require such shares to be transferred to them whether for consideration or not.

9 Transmission of shares

- The Board may at any time give notice requiring any person entitled to a share by reason of the death or bankruptcy of the holder of it to elect either to be registered himself in respect of the share or to transfer the share and if the notice is not complied with within 60 days of such notice, the Board may thereafter withhold payment of all dividends, bonuses or other moneys payable in respect of the share until the requirements of the notice have been complied with Regulation 30 is modified accordingly
- When a person becomes entitled to a share in consequence of death or bankruptcy or otherwise by way of operation of law, the rights of the holder in relation to it cease. The person who becomes so entitled may give a good discharge for dividends and other distributions in respect of the share. Regulation 31 is modified accordingly

10 Proceedings at general meetings

- No business shall be transacted at any general meeting unless a quorum is present when the meeting proceeds to business (provided that the absence of a quorum shall not preclude the choice or appointment of a chairman, which shall not be treated as part of the business of the meeting) Whenever the company has only one member, the member present (being an individual) in person or by proxy, or (being a corporation) by a duly authorised representative or by proxy shall be a quorum
- A poll may be demanded at any general meeting by any member entitled to vote on the resolution (being an individual) present in person or by proxy or (being a corporation) present by a duly authorised representative or by proxy Regulation 46 shall be modified accordingly

11 Proxies

Proxy appointments

11 1 The appointment of a proxy shall

- (a) be made in writing under the hand of the appointor or of his attorney duly authorised in writing (or if the appointor is a corporation under its common seal or under the hand of some officer or attorney duly authorised on its behalf) and shall be in any common form or in such other form as the Board may approve,
- (b) be deemed (subject to any contrary direction contained in the same) to confer authority to demand or join in demanding a poll and to vote (whether on a show of hands or a poll) on any resolution or amendment of a resolution put to the meeting for which it is given, as the proxy thinks fit and to confer the right to speak at the meeting to which it relates (including any adjournment of it),

- (c) be valid as well for any adjournment of the meeting as for the meeting to which it relates; and
- (d) where it is stated to apply to more than one meeting, be valid for all such meetings as well as for any adjournment of any such meetings.
- Subject to the provisions of the Acts, the appointment of a proxy and the power of attorney or other authority (if any) under which it is signed (or a copy of such authority certified notarially or in some other way approved by the Board) shall be sent or supplied in hard copy form, or (subject to any conditions and limitations which the Board may specify) in electronic form
 - (a) to the registered office of the company; or
 - (b) to such other address (including electronic address) as is specified in the notice convening the meeting or in any instrument of proxy or any invitation to appoint a proxy sent or supplied by the company in relation to the meeting, or
 - (c) as the Board shall otherwise direct,

to be received before the time for the holding of the meeting or adjourned meeting to which it relates or, in the case of a poll taken after the date of the meeting or adjourned meeting, before the time appointed for the poll

Any instrument of proxy not so sent or supplied or received shall be invalid unless the Board at any time prior to the meeting or the chairman of the meeting at the meeting, in their or his absolute discretion, accept as valid an instrument of proxy where there has not been compliance with the provisions of this Article and such proxy shall thereupon be valid notwithstanding such default

Revocation of proxy

- 11 4 The validity of
 - (a) a vote given or poll demanded in accordance with the terms of an appointment of a proxy, or
 - (b) anything done by a proxy acting as duly appointed chairman of a meeting, or
 - (c) any decision determining whether a proxy counts in a quorum at a meeting,

shall not be affected notwithstanding the death or mental disorder of the appointor or the revocation of the appointment of the proxy (or of the authority under which the appointment of the proxy was executed) or the transfer of the share in respect of which the appointment of the proxy is given, unless notice in writing of such death, mental disorder, revocation or transfer shall have been

(d) sent or supplied to the company in any manner permitted for the sending or supplying of appointments of proxy pursuant to these Articles, and

- (e) received at the registered office of the company (or such other address (including electronic address) as has been designated for the sending or supplying of appointments of proxy), before the time for the holding of the meeting or adjourned meeting to which it relates or, in the case of a poll taken after the date of the meeting or adjourned meeting, before the time appointed for the poll.
- 11 5 Regulations 60 to 63 (inclusive) shall not apply to the company

12 Number of directors

The minimum number of directors shall be one and, if there is a sole director, he shall have all the powers and be subject to all the provisions conferred on the directors by these Articles and he (or any alternate director appointed by him) shall alone constitute a quorum at any meeting of the directors Regulations 64, 89 and 90 are modified (and all other provisions of these Articles relating to directors shall be construed) accordingly

13. Alternate directors

- The appointment of an alternate director shall be valid notwithstanding that he is approved by a resolution of the directors after his appointment as alternate director. Where an alternate director attends a meeting of the directors and no objection is raised at the meeting to his presence then he shall be deemed to have been approved by a resolution of the directors. Regulation 65 is modified accordingly.
- A director who acts as an alternate director for one or more other directors shall be entitled to a separate vote for each appointor, in addition to his own vote Regulation 88 is modified accordingly.

14 Delegation of directors' powers

Any committee of the Board may consist of one or more co-opted persons other than directors of the company on whom voting rights may be conferred as members of the committee but so that the number of co-opted members shall be less than one-half of the total number of members of the committee and so that no resolution of the committee shall be effective unless a majority of the members of the committee voting on the resolution are directors of the company. Regulation 72 shall be modified accordingly

15 Appointment and retirement of directors

- Regulation 78 shall apply but with the deletion of the words "and may also determine the rotation in which any additional directors are to retire" and the last sentence of Regulation 84 shall not apply to the company.
- The Board may by majority decision of all the directors remove from office any director appointed under Regulation 79 unless his appointment was made more than 2 years before such decision or unless his appointment has been approved by resolution of the shareholders Regulation 79 is modified accordingly

16 Remuneration of directors and director's expenses

- The directors shall be entitled to such remuneration (if any) by way of fee as shall from time to time be determined by the company in general meeting. An alternate director may be paid by the company such part (if any) of the remuneration by way of fee otherwise payable to his appointor as his appointor may by notice in writing to the company from time to time direct. An alternate director shall not be entitled to vote on any resolution relating to the remuneration of an alternate director (whether himself or others)
- 16.2 A director (including an alternate director) shall also be entitled to be paid all travelling, hotel and other expenses reasonably and properly incurred in attending and returning from meetings of the shareholders of the company, Board meetings or Board committee meetings or otherwise reasonably and properly incurred in connection with the business of the company or in the proper discharge of his duties as a director (or alternate director) of the company
- Any director who, by request, performs special services or goes or resides abroad for any purpose of the company or who otherwise performs services which, in the opinion of the Board, are outside the scope of the ordinary duties of a director of the company shall receive such extra remuneration of such amount and payable in such form as the Board may determine, which shall be charged as part of the company's ordinary working expenses
- The end of the first sentence of Regulation 66 is modified accordingly and Regulations 82 and 83 shall not apply to the company

17 Proceedings of directors

- 17 1 The quorum for the transaction of the business of the directors may be fixed by the directors and unless so fixed at any other number shall be one whenever there is a sole director and shall be two whenever there are two or more directors Regulation 89 is modified accordingly
- 17 2 Regulation 89 of Table A is also amended by adding at the end the following sentence, "An alternate director who is also a director is treated as two directors at a meeting at which his appointor is not present "
- Any director (including an alternate director) may participate in a meeting of the directors (or a committee of the directors of which he is a member) by telephone, video conference or other audio or audio-visual link or any other form of telecommunication provided all persons participating in the meeting can hear each other and participation in a meeting in this manner shall be deemed to constitute presence in person at such meeting and, subject to these Articles and the Companies Acts, he shall be entitled to vote and be counted in the quorum accordingly. A meeting held in this manner shall be deemed to be validly held and shall be deemed to take place where the largest group of participants is physically assembled, or if there is no such group, where the chairman is physically present. The directors not present at the place at which the meeting is deemed to be held shall nevertheless be marked as

present for the purposes of any minutes of the meeting Notices of any Board meetings need not be given in writing

A director may vote at any meeting of the directors or a committee of the directors of which he is a member on any resolution, and a director may participate in the transaction of the business of the directors and count in the quorum at any such meeting of the directors or a committee of the directors of which he is a member notwithstanding that it concerns or relates in any way to a matter in which he has directly or indirectly any kind of interest or duty. This Article does not affect any obligation of a director to comply with section 317, 1985 Act (or, as the case may be, section 177 and/or section 182, 2006 Act (whichever provision is in force at the relevant time)) or Regulations 85 and 86 regarding disclosure of interests Regulations 94 to 97 (inclusive) shall not apply to the company

18 Company communications

Method of communication

Subject to the provisions of the Acts, any document or information required or authorised to be sent or supplied by the company to any member or any other person pursuant to these Articles, and the Companies Acts or any other rules or regulations to which the company may be subject, may be sent or supplied in hard copy form, in electronic form, by means of a website or in any other way in which documents or information may be sent or supplied by the company pursuant to the Companies Acts, provided that notices of Board meetings need not be in writing. The provisions of the 2006 Act which apply to sending or supplying a document or information required or authorised to be sent or supplied by the Companies Acts by making it available on a website shall, mutatis mutandis, apply to the sending or supplying of any document or information required or authorised to be sent by these Articles or any other rules or regulations to which the company may be subject, by making it available on a website

Address for service

The company may send or supply any document or information to a member either personally, or by post in a prepaid envelope addressed to the member at his registered address or at his address for service, or by leaving it at that address or any other address for the time being notified to the company by the member for the purpose, or by sending or supplying it using electronic means to an electronic address for the time being notified to the company by the member for the purpose, or by any other means authorised in writing by the member concerned. A member whose registered address is not within the United Kingdom and who gives the company an address within the United Kingdom to which documents or information may be sent or supplied to him or gives an electronic address to which documents or information may be sent or supplied using electronic means, shall be entitled to have documents or information sent or supplied to him at that address, but otherwise no such member shall be entitled to receive any document or information from the company

Service on joint holders

18.3 In the case of joint holders of a share, if the company sends or supplies any document or information to one of the joint holders, it shall be deemed to have been properly sent or supplied such document or information to all the joint holders

Undelivered documents or information

- 18 4 If, on at least 2 consecutive occasions, the Company has attempted to send any document or information by electronic means to an address specified (or deemed specified) for the purpose and a delivery failure (or other similar) notification has been received by the Company, the Company thereafter shall, send documents or information in hard copy form or electronic form (but not by electronic means) to such member at his registered address or address for service within the United Kingdom (whether by hand, by post or by leaving it or them at such address), in which case the provisions of Article 18 5 shall apply
- 18 5 If on 3 consecutive occasions documents or information have been sent or supplied to any member at his registered address or address for the service of such documents or information in the United Kingdom but have been returned undelivered, such member shall not thereafter be entitled to receive any documents or information from the Company until he shall have communicated with the Company and supplied in writing a new registered address or address within the United Kingdom for the service of documents or information or an electronic address to which documents or information may be sent or supplied using electronic means

Evidence of service and deemed delivery

- Any member present, in person or by proxy at any meeting of the Company or of the holders of any class of shares of the Company, shall be deemed to have received due notice of such meeting and, where requisite, of the purposes for which such meeting was called
- Any document or information, addressed to a member (or other person to whom such document or information is required or authorised to be sent pursuant to these Articles, the Companies Acts or otherwise) at his registered address or address for service in the United Kingdom (or electronic address, as the case may be) shall
 - (a) if hand delivered or left at a registered address or other address for service in the United Kingdom, be deemed to have been served or delivered on the day on which it was so delivered or left,
 - (b) If sent or supplied by post (whether in hard copy form or in electronic form), be deemed to have been received at the expiration of 24 hours after the envelope was posted,
 - (c) If sent or supplied by electronic means (other than by means of website), be deemed to have been received (if sent or supplied between the hours of 9 a m.

- and 5 p m on a working day) at the time it was sent, or (if sent or supplied at any other time) at 9 a m on the next following working day, and
- (d) If sent or supplied by means of a website, be deemed to have been received when the material was first made available on the website or, if later, when the recipient received (or is deemed to have received) notice of the fact that the material was available on the website.
- 18 8 In calculating a period of hours for the purpose of Article 18 7, no account shall be taken of any part of a day that is not a working day
- Subject to Article 18 6, in proving such service or delivery it shall be sufficient to prove that the envelope containing the document or information was properly addressed and put into the post in a prepaid envelope or, in the case of a document or information sent or supplied by electronic means, that it was sent or supplied in accordance with guidance issued by the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators entitled "Electronic Communications with Shareholders 2007" (as such guidance is amended or updated from time to time).
- 18 10 The Company shall not be held responsible for any failure in transmission beyond its reasonable control and the provisions of Articles 18 6 to 18 9 (inclusive) shall apply regardless of any document or information being returned undelivered and regardless of any delivery failure notification or "out of office" or other similar response and any such "out of office" or other similar response shall not be considered to be a delivery failure.
- 18 11 Regulations 111, 112 and 115 shall not apply to the company
- 19 Indemnity, Funding and Insurance
- Subject to (but to the fullest extent permitted by) the provisions of the Companies Acts and without prejudice to any indemnity to which he may otherwise be entitled
 - any person who is a director of the company or any associated company (which shall, for the purposes of this Article 19 1 have the meaning given in Section 256, 2006 Act) may, at the discretion of the Board be indemnified out of the assets of the company against all or any part of any costs, charges, losses, expenses and liabilities incurred by him in the actual or purported execution or discharge of his duties or in the actual or purported exercise of his powers in relation to the affairs of the company or associated company, or incurred by him in connection with the company's activities as trustee of any occupational pension scheme (which shall, for the purposes of this Article 19 1 have the meaning given in Section 235(6), 2006 Act); and
 - (b) any person who is a director of the company or any holding company (as such is defined in Section 1159 and Schedule 6, 2006 Act) may, at the discretion of the Board be provided with funds to meet any expenditure incurred or to be incurred by him as provided in Sections 205 and 206, 2006 Act (or to enable him to avoid incurring any such expenditure)

- 19 2 Subject to the provisions of the Companies Acts, the company may (as the directors shall, in their absolute discretion, determine) purchase and maintain, at the expense of the company, insurance for any person who is a director of the company or any associated company in respect of all or any part of any costs, charges, losses, expenses and liabilities incurred by him in the actual or purported execution or discharge of his duties or in the actual or purported exercise of his powers in relation to the affairs of the company, or incurred by him in connection with the company's activities as trustee of any occupational pension scheme.
- 19 3 Regulation 118 shall not apply to the company

20 Rights of Holding Company

- 20 1 For so long as the company is a subsidiary of the Holding Company, the following provisions shall apply and, to the extent of any inconsistency between this Article and any other provision(s) of these Articles, this Article shall prevail
 - (a) the Holding Company may, at any time and from time to time, appoint any person to be a director of the company or remove from office any director of the company howsoever appointed, provided that, in the case of a director holding an executive office, his removal from office shall be deemed to be an act of the company and shall have effect without prejudice to any claim for damages for breach of any contract between him and the company;
 - (b) no person (other than a person appointed by the Holding Company itself) shall be appointed a director of the company without the prior approval of the Holding Company and no person shall be appointed an alternate director without the prior approval of the Holding Company,
 - (c) no quorum shall be present at any meeting of the company unless the Holding Company is present either by duly authorised representative or by proxy throughout the meeting,
 - (d) the Holding Company may at any time and from time to time inspect all or any of the accounting records of the company or other books or documents of the company,
 - (e) no unissued shares or securities shall be issued or agreed to be issued or put under option without the consent of the Holding Company, and
 - (f) all or any of the powers of the Board or any of the directors of the company shall be restricted in such respects and to such extent as the Holding Company may at any time and from time to time by notice to the company prescribe
- 20 2 Any such appointment, removal, consent or notice referred to in Article 20 1 shall either be in writing and signed on behalf of the Holding Company by any of its directors or be sent to the Company in the electronic form
- 20.3 No person dealing with the company or a member or in relation to any shares shall be concerned to see or enquire as to whether the powers of the Board have been in any way restricted pursuant to Article 20 1 or whether any requisite consent of the Holding

Company has been obtained and no obligation incurred or security given or transaction effected by the company to or with any third party shall invalid or ineffectual unless the third party had at the relevant time express notice that the incurring of such obligation or the giving of such security or the effecting of such transaction was in excess of the powers of the Board or any of the company's directors.